

Sullivan's Gulch Neighborhood Association, c/o Encorepreneur Cafe, 1548 NE 15<sup>th</sup> Ave., Portland, Oregon 97232 http://www.sullivansgulch.org

# Meeting Minutes of the SGNA Board of Directors August 14, 2018 7---9 PM

Board Members Present: Dave Brook, Sean Weaver, Mike Brown, Chris Tanner, Dan Lerch-Walters, Kathy Hansen, Martin Rowe, Daniel Pirofsky, Julie Hoffinger, Kelly Fancois, Chris Jensen

<u>Board Members Excused</u>: Mary Beth Christopher, Ron Boucher <u>Board Members Unexcused</u>: Jack Frewing, Linda McDowell <u>Guests and Neighborhood Members</u>: Maria Dula, Eugenia Pardue, Bastion VanHorn, Glen Whitefield, David Peterson

All motions and votes are marked in <u>underline and italics.</u> All votes were completed by show of hands.

## Meeting Start and Roll Call at 7:05 pm

## Open Mic: Time for members of our community to raise concerns/questions

- 2020 Multnomah
  - Representatives from Anderson construction and the 2020 Multnomah ownership, including Glenn Whitefield (construction foreman) came to give a progress update and talk about noise issues. The project is on schedule and the concrete pouring phase should be done sometime soon in September. They envision there being 7 more early morning concrete pours, and are doing their best to not burden neighbors while also staying on schedule. Glen hears neighbors concerns about early work hours and noise but feels that they don't have other options due to the work limits put on them by the city, PBOT, and the temperature and logistics required to install the concrete correctly. They also try to keep their employees aware of how they effect the neighbors too, but they aren't perfect. If neighbors have issues or see problems, Glen wants them to feel free to contact him or come visit him on site to talk. If he doesn't hear about the problems, he can't fix them.
  - Bastion wanted to let people know that they have moved into their sales office on Broadway to start selling and reserving units at the 2020 building. Currently 23 out of 162 units are already reserved.
    - Kelly asked how the condo board would be created. Julie answered that according to state law, reservations would need to converted to actual sales before the board could be created and the running of the building would pass from the management company to the new board could occur.
    - David asked about how the 2020 building is going to leave space for the potential of the Gulch Bike Trail. It doesn't seem like there is space.
      Daniel notes that it is a tight fit, but it did originally seem like their would be room for staircases and a trail. Dan wonders if there were any concerns about the trail passing from public to private property, but

Anderson construction says that there should be sidewalk on that side of the building so it should be fine.

## **Approval of June Minutes**

• <u>Chris moves to approve the minutes with one edit suggested by Julie. Kathy Seconds.</u> <u>Board unanimously passes the motion.</u>

## **Treasurer's Report**

• Michael says that there is currently \$5,000 in bank. Kelly and Chris will be submitting bills totally \$500 today, leaving the balance approximately at \$4,500.

## **Business Items**

- Board Members -
  - Dave brings up that Sean, Andrea, and Betsy have left or are leaving the board. This leaves the board with 15 current members and a need for a new secretary. Michael also asks if Kari LaForge or Linda McDowell are still on the board. Kari is over the unexcused meeting absence number and Linda has had personal matters to attend to over the past few months. Chris and Dave will reach out to Kari. David can talk to Linda. Dave would like to try and get someone from the Fontaine. Sean also hopes that more renters can be recruited to the board as well.
  - Julie volunteers to take over note taking on an interim basis and Dave can take over the other secretary duties on an interim basis. Kelly wonders if the board could consider having a non-board member be paid a small amount to take notes and have that not be one of the secretaries duties? The board will think about this.

## Clean Start PDX-

 Chris wants to know if the SGNA would like to get involved with the NECN letter asking for the city to continue funding the Clean Start PDX program in the northeast. Maria explains that the program is still running downtown on the west side, and the city has not explained why it has not been renewed in the northeast side. Maria said that an SGNA letter would also be useful. <u>Chris motions to draft</u> <u>a letter supporting the program's funding. Kelly seconds. The board passes the</u> <u>motion with Sean abstaining.</u>

## • NECN Houseless Committee-

• Dave asks if someone from the board could join the NECN houseless committee and work on outreach and so forth as it effects the board. Kelly volunteers.

## **Committee Updates**

## • Safety & Livability

Report on street painting and street parties from Kelly Francois and Eugenia Pardue. Eugenia wants people to know that she is quite happy from the support and action that the SGNA and Safety and Livability committee put behind the street painting. Though it took two years, she feels that it is worth it to see community building and support for the arts combine in this project. Kelly says that while there are no more street parties planned yet this year, there does seem to be an interest from folks at Holliday Park Plaza and the Fontaine in hosting another. She is wondering if there is anyone there that could work with her to coordinate this. Kathy says she can connect people with Kelly.

## • Land Use and Transportation

DJ Heffernan was not able to make the meeting to give a report on street art and budget for 21<sup>st</sup> and Clackamas crossing.

## Communications

 Lawn Signs - Dave brings up the topic of the SGNA procedures with lawn signs being put up, updated regularly, and maintained by the SGNA board members. The signs were used this year for the general membership meeting, street parties, and garage sales so far. Mike liked the current system and wants it to continue. If the board shrinks in size so board members have to take on multiple signs, that should be ok. While happy that this has lessened the load from the communications committee, Dan does worry about the system becoming too onerous to manage. Julie wonders if the SGNA could outsource this for a small price to a couple of local people.

## • Bylaws

Review and Discussion of the draft *Policies, Practices, and Procedures (PPPs)*. Dan is thankful for the hard work from the bylaws committee in the creation and updating they have done of the PPPs. The Bylaws Committee recommends that the board adopt the document with any amendments that the board recommends. Dan hopes that the new PPPs, along with the new bylaws adopted by the SGNA last year can foster greater continuity of the SGNA over the years as the board members and executive committee members change. Chris Tanner explains that the committee worked hard to make this as clear and simple as possible. Chris Jensen thinks the document looks great. Kathy asks if there were any sections that the committee wanted the board to talk about specifically.

- Pertaining to the section on voting, Chris Tanner wondered if some of these things were covered already in Robert's Rules of Order. Julie has concerns over the order of Chair's discretion and board voting being conflicting. Dave wondered if officer seats should be normal votes and not have a secret ballot option.
- Dave also notes that there was some disagreement over maintaining a membership list, but Dan says that the committee was able come to an majority agreement and that was resolved. Dave wanted the PPP to just require the secretary to keep sign in sheets for a year and only create a full membership list if asked.
- Sean encourages the committee to change the language to allow people residing or owning a business with an "address" within the SGNA to "location" to make the membership be less exclusionary to those who may not have a legally recognized address.
- Chris Tanner moves to accept the PPPs as present with the exceptions of the article 8 section 5, the board voting procedure section, to be worked on more by the Bylaws committee. Kathy seconds. Dave makes a friendly amendment to add the word location to article 9 section 1b. The board passes with Sean abstaining.

Adjournment at 8:48 pm.

## POLICIES, PRACTICES, AND PROCEDURES OF THE SULLIVAN'S GULCH NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION

Adopted by its Board of Directors, xxxxxx, 2018

#### Preamble

In compliance with the currently adopted *Bylaws of the Sullivan's Gulch Neighborhood Association ("Bylaws")* and with currently published Standards for Neighborhood Associations of the City of Portland's Office of Neighborhood Involvement, these *Policies, Practices, and Procedures ("PPP's")* guide the conduct of the SGNA Board of Directors and each of its elected directors in relation with its Membership and community at large. They shall be used to organize, instruct, and guide the Board of Directors in fulfilling its mission and purpose while managing the affairs of the Association through its operations, communications, deliberations, and actions. In the event of any conflict between the *Bylaws* and these *PPPs*, the *Bylaws* will prevail.

In accordance with Article XV of the *Bylaws*, these *Policies, Practices, and Procedures* may be established and amended by a majority vote of directors representing a quorum at a Regular, Special, or Emergency Meeting of the Board of Directors.

**Note:** The policies listed below are organized by their controlling Articles of the *Bylaws.* "No policy established." is indicated under any Articles for which there are no policies currently established. The specific section of an Article related to each policy is indicated in the text.

#### **ARTICLE I: NAME**

[No policy established.]

### **ARTICLE II: MISSION AND PURPOSE**

[No policy established.]

### **ARTICLE III: BOUNDARIES**

[No policy established.]

#### **ARTICLE IV: MEMBERSHIP**

In order to establish membership, eligible individuals must provide their name and address, and written consent to be a member. Written consent may be in the form of a checkbox on a meeting sign-in sheet. Each person shall affirm that they are at least 16 years of age, and that their address falls within the defined boundaries of Sullivan's Gulch or that they are the designated representative of an eligible member organization or business. Each person also may choose to provide contact information such as an email address or phone number. (See Section 1. Eligibility.)

1

Sign-in sheets for members at Membership Meetings, dated per meeting, shall include a checkbox or column in which a member may provide their mark or initial affirming their eligibility and consent to be a member of the Association. Sign-in sheets shall be retained for a minimum of one year. (See Section 2. Consent.)

### **ARTICLE V: BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

#### **Attendance at Board Meetings**

Meetings of the Board of the Directors shall begin with the Chairperson or their designee asking the Secretary to call the roll of all directors present. For any meeting, the Secretary—or in the absence of the Secretary, a director designated by the Chairperson—shall note all late arrivals and early departures on the roll card for that date. (See Article VIII, Section 8 Quorum.)

#### Absences

As set forth in the *Bylaws*, the Board of Directors may remove any director by a 2/3 vote in cases involving unexcused absences by a director from at least three (3) meetings in a year.

For purposes of Section 4, Removal, an "unexcused absence" is defined as:

- 1. The absence of a director from a Board meeting without giving prior notice to the Chairperson; or, the partial absence of a director from a Board meeting, such as a late arrival or early departure, where there was no reasonable attempt by the member to give prior notice to the Chairperson; or
- 2. A pattern of repeated requests to be excused for absences from Board meetings, that indicates a lack of engagement by the director.
- 3. Provided, however, that in case of any medical or family emergency, no prior notice to the Chairperson will be required and the absence will be deemed excused.

Notice to the Chairperson regarding an absence may be given in person, in writing, by telephone, voicemail, or text communication.

As a preliminary step before the Board takes action on any director's absences from Board meetings, the Chairperson shall discuss the absences with the director, communicate the importance of regular attendance, and encourage the director's commitment to the Board. Depending on the circumstances, the Chairperson may recommend one of the following:

- 1. A probationary period during which the Board member agrees to work on improving their engagement/attendance;
- 2. A request by the Board member for a leave of absence of not more than three months, which the Chairperson shall have discretion to approve;
- 3. A request by the Board member for a leave of absence in excess of three months, which requires approval of the Board;
- 4. Voluntary resignation by the Board member;
- 5. The Chairperson's recommendation to the Board to take a vote regarding the removal of the Board member.

(See Section 4 Removal.)

#### Violations of the Bylaws or PPPs

Potential violations of the Bylaws or PPPs may include:

- Repeated unethical, abusive, or disruptive behavior at meetings or in the company of other directors.
- Violation of Article V. Board of Directors, Section 9. Board Authority over Association Representatives.
- Violation of election procedures detailed in Article IX: Elections, such as compromising the integrity of member ballots.
- Violation of Article X: Conflict Of Interest.
- Violation of Article XII: Grievance Process, Section 4. One-on-One Dialogue and Mediation.

Alleged violations of the *Bylaws* or *PPPs* by any director shall be reported to the Chairperson or another member of the Executive Committee, who shall initiate an investigation by the Executive Committee in closed session. Findings by this committee may result in a recommendation to the Board of Directors to hold a vote regarding removal of the director from the Board.

As a preliminary step before the Board considers removal of a director, the Board may vote to apply any or all of the following to the director:

- A probationary period for redressing meeting attendance, or inappropriate behavior.
- Removal from participation in committees.
- Revocation of an assignment to represent the Board of Directors at City, County, or Coalition committees, or proscription of the director's power to vote on questions before that body as our representative, or removal of the director from the office of Neighborhood Coalition Representative.

The director may contest the allegation and subsequent Board actions as a potential violation of the *Bylaws* or *PPPs*, by filing a grievance against the Board. (See Section 4 Removal and Section 6. Director Duties.)

#### **Board Vacancies.**

To maximize representation of the membership on the Board, the Board shall endeavor to fill vacancies resulting from resignation or removal. The Chairperson or Executive Committee shall provide notice to the Board of any resignations of directors in a timely manner. Board members will endeavor to solicit nominations for appointment to fill a vacancy. (See Section 5. Board Vacancies.)

#### **Execution of Director Duties.**

In the execution of their duties, Directors shall behave in an ethical and respectful manner in meetings and in interactions with other board members. No unethical, patently offensive, or disruptive behavior will be tolerated in meetings or in dealings with other board members. (See Section 6, Director Duties)

#### **Board Authority over Association Representatives**

Any officer, director, or member of a committee appointed by the Board to serve as its representative on any City or County committee or external organization shall make a good faith effort to represent the views of the Board on any particular issue and use the following policy as guidance in fairly representing the Association:

When the Board has not yet taken a position on an issue to be decided by another body prior to the next Board meeting, our representative on that body may also request the Chairperson or Executive Committee to call a Special, Emergency, or Electronic Board Meeting to determine the Board's position on that proposal. The Executive Committee may otherwise offer the representative advice on how to participate in the discussion before another body.

When the Board has taken a position on a particular issue, and the representative does not agree with that position on a proposal put before another body, the representative must at least present the Board's position as distinct from their own in discussions on such proposals, and either vote in accordance with the Board or abstain from the vote.

These requirements for SGNA representatives shall not in any way limit the rights of officers, directors, members of committees, or members of the Association to attend, participate, and speak on their own behalf at any meeting of a City or County or external organization.

Our representative on any external committee shall report to the Board, either verbally or in writing, on any relevant discussions before that body.

(See Section 9. Board Authority over Association Representatives.)

### **ARTICLE VI: OFFICERS**

#### **Duties of the Secretary**

The Secretary shall maintain all non-financial files of the Association, including:

- meeting sign-in sheets
- ballots and votes counts
- Neighborhood Coalition Representative appointments

The Secretary shall also annually notify our District Coalition office and ONI of the following:

- Newly amended SGNA Bylaws (if amended)
- Current roster of the Board of Directors and elected Officers;
- The appointment of our Neighborhood Coalition Representative (by letter signed by the Chairperson and delivered to our District Coalition office);
- Current Membership Meeting calendar;
- Current Board of Directors meeting calendar;
- · Changes in SGNA contact information such as mailing address or web address.

(See Section 4. Duties of Officers. Part c. Secretary.)

### **Duties of the Treasurer**

The Treasurer shall present a report on the Association's current finances at each Membership Meeting. The Executive Committee shall review each report and may make recommendations to the Board for its consideration at the next regular meeting or Annual Retreat as part of the Board's adoption of its next annual budget. (See Section 4. Duties of Officers. Part d. Treasurer.)

### **ARTICLE VII: COMMITTEES**

### **Establishing Committees**

Any standing or ad hoc committee established by the Board of Directors, and not already defined in our *Bylaws*, shall have its purpose, scope, and charge recorded in these *PPPs*. The Board may also provide instructions on committee membership. (See Section 1. Establishment of Committees.)

#### **Appointment of Committees**

All directors are strongly encouraged to serve on at least one committee. Directors may satisfy their commitment to committee service by participating in any major activity sponsored by the Association. (See Section 6. Director Duties, part e.)

#### **Standing Advisory Committees:**

#### **Emergency Preparedness Committee**

A standing advisory Emergency Preparedness Committee shall be established to support the Sullivan's Gulch Neighborhood Emergency Team (NET) in its work to mobilize neighbors to prepare their families and property in case of potential disasters and, whenever necessary, to deploy its team to respond to such disasters in our community under the direction of the Portland Bureau of Emergency Management (PBEM).

This committee shall identify and meet community resilience goals through:

- Community outreach and engagement, including the recruitment of individuals to join the Sullivan's Gulch NET and the development of partnerships with local businesses and organizations;
- Resource development and fundraising that advances the work of the Sullivan's Gulch NET, including preparedness training opportunities for members of our community;
- Cooperation with the SGNA Committees of Communications, Safety and Livability, and Land Use and Transportation to develop emergency preparedness and community resilience throughout Sullivan's Gulch, especially through the deployment of a neighborhood communications network.

In addition to a Committee Chair and Secretary that report to the SGNA Board, this committee shall consider electing officers for the following functions: outreach coordination, training development, and resource development.

The Emergency Preparedness Committee shall have no SGNA Board authority, but is solely responsible for supporting the Sullivan's Gulch NET as the NET operates under the authority and guidance of PBEM. This committee shall advise the Board and support SGNA activities. (See Section 1. Establishment of Committees.)

#### **Ad Hoc Advisory Committees**

#### **Bylaws or Rules Committee**

If the Board of Directors is presented with a proposal for amendment of the *Bylaws* under the method described in Article XVI of the *Bylaws*, then an ad hoc Bylaws or Rules Committee shall be established. This committee shall first propose a review process and timetable providing the Board of Directors and Membership ample time to submit comments on drafted amendments, as well as time for final Board deliberation on these proposals as recommendations to the Membership. This timetable shall propose the date and time for the Membership to consider such amendments at a Membership Meeting, in accordance with Article XVI: Amendment Of Bylaws.

If the Board of Directors is presented with a proposal for amendment of the *PPPs*, the Board may consider this proposal as a motion under ordinary procedure, appoint a Rules Committee to make recommendations on the proposal, or refer the proposal to an existing Bylaws or Rules Committee. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees.)

#### **Neighborhood Clean-up Committee**

An ad hoc Neighborhood Clean-up Committee may be established as needed to shall plan and coordinate neighborhood cleanup events, such as the Spring Cleanup and the Gulch Cleanup. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees.)

#### **Events Committee**

An ad hoc Events Committee may be established as needed to plan, design, host, and manage any neighborhood events sponsored by the Board of Directors and coordinate, as necessary, with any of its committees or external organizations. Members recruited to assist the committee with such events shall be considered members of the Events Committee for the duration of the planning and occasion of the event. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees.)

#### **Nominating or Election Committee**

At least one month prior to the Annual Membership Meeting, the Chairperson, Executive Committee, or Board of Directors shall decide whether to appoint an ad hoc Nominating or Election Committee to recruit candidates, receive nominations, and coordinate the annual election of directors. In lieu of appointing a formal committee, the Chairperson shall insure that at least a minimum number of directors or members required to coordinate the annual election are available for service and not currently candidates for a seat on the Board of Directors. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees.)

#### **Annual Budgeting Process**

Each standing committee shall provide the Treasurer a detailed request, at least 60 days prior to the end of each calendar year, describing the portion of the subsequent year's annual budget requested to fund its operations. (See Section 4. Standing Committees.)

#### **Committee Procedures**

#### Meetings

Committees shall meet as necessary to discuss Association business and consider recommendations for Board action. Whenever possible, committees shall set a regular date, time, and location for their meetings. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees and Section 4. Standing Committees.)

### Notifications

Each standing committee shall notify the Board and Membership in advance of the time, location, and agendas of their meetings. Ad hoc committees are strongly encouraged, but not required, to notify the Board and Membership in advance of the time, location, and agendas of their meetings. Notice to the Membership may be satisfied by using a similar means of notification that is used by the Board to notify the Membership about Board meetings.

All notifications and requests for comment from the City, as well as all proposals for action received from external organizations or members of the Association, must first be reported to the Board, either in meeting or by communications, and placed in the published Agenda for the next meeting of the Board of Directors, before a committee recommends any action to the Board. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees and Section 4. Standing Committees.)

#### **Committee deliberations**

Committees may work by consensus, but the Chairperson or any director serving on a committee may ask for a vote on any proposal as a recommendation for Board of Directors action. Committees may report recommendations to the Board without a requirement to maintain quorum for a committee vote. Members of committees with a potential conflict of interest shall recuse themselves from voting on a particular committee proposal or recommendation, but may present information and participate in discussions related to the proposal. Committees shall keep written records of their activities and, upon request, make them available for inspection by any director or member of the Association, within a reasonable time. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees and Section 4. Standing Committees.)

#### **Committee reports**

Each Committee must periodically report to the Board any ongoing committee work. Reports about ongoing work may be given orally at Board meetings or may be submitted in writing.

In the event of a decision or vote by a committee to make recommendations to the Board of Directors, it shall provide a written report for discussion at a Board meeting. In addition to specific recommendations by the committee for action by the Board, the report may also include a description of ongoing committee work. Committee reports shall be distributed to all directors at least seven (7) days prior to the next Board meeting. All committee

recommendations for action must be reported as motions to be put before the Board. All motions put before the Board must be submitted to the Secretary in writing, to be included in the meeting minutes. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees and Section 4. Standing Committees.)

#### Limitations on the Powers of All Committees

Applicable law provides that no committee may authorize payment of a dividend or any part of the income or profit of the corporation to its directors or officers; may approve dissolution, merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of the corporation's assets; may elect appoint, or remove directors or fill vacancies on the Board or on any of its committees; nor may adopt, amend or repeal the articles of incorporation, bylaws, or any resolution by the Board. (See Section 2. Advisory Committees and Section 4. Standing Committees.)

### **ARTICLE VIII: MEETINGS**

#### **Public Comment at Meetings**

At any meeting of the Association, issues of concern to large numbers of persons may be heard using a sign-up procedure devised by the Chairperson or Committee Chair to allow for efficient use of meeting time but with sufficient time for public comment. At the discretion of the Chairperson or Committee Chair, discussion may be limited to three (3) minutes per person, and limited to two (2) persons speaking for each side of an issue, to allow time for all interested persons to speak. (See Section 2. Participation and Right to be Heard.)

#### **Electronic Meetings**

Electronic meetings may be held by conference call or synchronous online chat. Participating directors shall declare their presence at the meeting with an initial communication to the Chairperson, who shall verify that quorum is achieved. The Chairperson will moderate the discussion and maintain rules of communication for all participants in accordance with established ordinary procedure. The Chairperson or Secretary shall record all motions and votes taken in a summary document appended to the meeting minutes or the chat room transcript received by the Chairperson. Electronic meetings shall adhere to all other requirements for Special or Emergency Board Meetings, as defined in the *Bylaws.* (See Section 3. Electronic Meetings.)

#### **Notifications for General Membership Meetings**

Although notice of a General Membership Meeting must be given at least seven days in advance of the meeting, whenever possible the Board shall endeavor to provide notice thirty days in advance of the meeting. (See Section 5. Membership Meetings.)

#### **Ordinary Procedure**

The Board of Directors shall deliberate using ordinary procedure as prescribed by the latest simplified edition of *Robert's Rules of Order*, to the extent not inconsistent with the *Bylaws* or these *PPPs*. Upon the request of any member in attendance, the Chairperson or an appointed parliamentarian shall instruct the Board to adhere to ordinary procedure as a general point of order. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### Votes taken by the Board of Directors.

At the discretion of the Chairperson, but subject to Board approval, any vote on a motion put before the Board of Directors may be taken by voice vote (aye, nay, abstain), by a show of hands, or by a public written ballot that contains the name of the member voting and the vote of that member and complies with *ONI Standards, VIII. Open Meetings and Public Records,* pp. 43– 44. The Board may vote to require that a vote on a motion be taken by roll call or by written ballot. All vote tallies shall be recorded in the meeting minutes. For election of officers and other representatives, voting may be done by secret ballot. Upon the request of any two voting members, a show of hands shall follow an oral vote. Anyone wishing to see public written ballots may do so at the meeting or anytime thereafter before the ballots are discarded. Written ballots must be retained for a period of at least 60 days after the vote. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### **Committee Minority Reports**

Upon the request of any committee member, a committee shall include the requested minority report in the committee's report containing recommendations to the Board of Directors, which shall consider the minority report for any motion voted upon. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### **Practices related to Meeting Minutes**

As required by our *Bylaws* and *ONI Standards and City Code, Article VIII Open Meetings and Public Records,* the Secretary shall keep minutes and written records of meetings, including majority and minority opinions on all items voted upon. Draft Minutes shall be published and disseminated to all directors seven (7) days in advance of the next meeting of the Board of Directors. Proposed corrections to the Minutes may be submitted by any director, either in writing to the Secretary or as a motion to amend the minutes before the Board of Directors. All approved Board Minutes and additional written records of meetings shall include the following in a clear typographic format that is consistent for all meeting minutes:

- Title of meeting (Minutes: Regular Monthly Meeting of the Board of Directors)
- Date of meeting
- Date of publication
- Date of Board approval, with or without amendments.
- Officers and directors in attendance
- · Officers and directors with an excused absence
- Officers and directors with an unexcused absence (including partial attendance)
- Quorum achieved
- Summaries of all discussions, including committee reports, must also include any motions made (to be supplied by the author).
- Vote tallies for each decision with action described as Adopted, Failed, or Tabled.
- A summary of majority and minority reports on votes, as part of the summaries of discussions or as submitted in writing by any director.
- Written vote tallies with names of directors only when voting with public written ballots.
- Appended draft or approved correspondence or other approved documents.

All approved meeting Minutes of the Association, except for meetings in Executive Session (as prescribed in Portland's *ONI Standards for Neighborhood Associations, pp. 37–46),* shall be published within thirty (30) days of the meeting in which they were approved. All published Minutes shall be available to the public from an online archive on the SGNA web site. Official correspondence from SGNA to the City and other groups shall be appended to Minutes for meetings during which such correspondence was approved. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### **Maintaining Order at Meetings**

The Chairperson or Committee Chair of any Association meeting may have anyone removed who disrupts a meeting after receiving at least one verbal warning during the same meeting. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### **Official Correspondence**

Any correspondence directed to City or County agencies, or external organizations that expresses an opinion or endorsement represented by a vote of the Board of Directors shall bear the signature of the Association Chairperson or his/her designee. The vote tally of the Board of Directors and any submitted minority reports shall be appended to the correspondence.

Correspondence may be drafted by any director(s) or committee for consideration by the Board of Directors. The Board may direct the author(s) to make specific amendments to the drafted correspondence. The director or committee responsible for amending and finalizing correspondence, per Board of Directors approval, shall post it for final review by all directors for a period of seven (7) days before it is signed and sent. The Chairperson shall include the finalized correspondence as an agenda item for the next Board meeting, and the Secretary shall append this correspondence to the resulting meeting minutes.

However, as correspondence is often time-sensitive, the director or committee drafting it for Board approval may disseminate it to all directors for review and comment prior to the next Board of Directors meeting. Upon indication of approval by a majority of directors, or by the Executive Committee in compliance with the processes set forth in the Bylaws, the correspondence shall be designated as approved by the Chairperson, to be signed and delivered as drafted. Barring objections from any director, the Board of Directors shall confirm the correspondence as approved at its next meeting. (See Section 10. Deliberation and Decision Making.)

#### **ARTICLE IX: ELECTIONS**

#### **General Election Procedures**

The Annual Election for directors shall be conducted during the Fall Membership Meeting. Elections shall be conducted according to the following procedure:

- 1. Voter Verification
  - a. All attendees shall sign-in as consenting members.
  - b. The sign-in sheet shall contain columns for name, mailing address, phone (optional), email address (optional), and a column or box for attendees to check, certifying eligibility and consent to be members.

- c. A volunteer shall instruct attendees to sign in with their name, address, and consent to be a member of the Association.
- d. A volunteer shall check the attendee's eligibility to be a member according to the Sullivan's Gulch map or affiliation as representative for a member organization.
- e. A volunteer shall give each eligible voter a ballot with brief instructions on the election procedure.
- 2. Ballot design
  - a. The name of the voter shall NOT be provided.
  - b. Up to ten lined spaces shall be available for the voter to write in the names of all nominated candidates.
- 3. Nomination process
  - a. The Chairperson shall request nominations from a nominating committee (if formed).
  - b. The Chairperson shall ask for nominations from the floor. Candidates must be SGNA members. Candidates may volunteer themselves. Seconds are not required.
  - c. Names of candidates shall be displayed prominently on a screen or board.
  - d. The Chairperson shall ask each candidate to make a brief statement, in order of their nomination.
- 4. Election process
  - a. The Chairperson or designee shall give brief instructions to the assembly on the election procedure.
  - b. Voters shall complete their ballots by writing the name of all nominees, and placing an X by the names of the nominees for whom they are voting.
  - c. Volunteers shall collect all the ballots, insuring their privacy.
  - d. At least two, but preferably four individuals all of whom must be either an NECN representative, a volunteer member, or a Board member not standing for election, in that order of preference shall count and record:
    - i. first, the total number of ballots counted; and
    - ii. second, the total number of votes marked on each and every ballot for each candidate.
  - e. With counting of ballots completed, the Chairperson or designee shall give an announcement of the election result with congratulations to all elected candidates.
- 5. Election rules
  - a. In accordance with our *Bylaws*, the Chairperson shall determine the total number of seats to be filled by an election in order to "stagger the terms of directors so that each year the terms of about one-half of the directors shall expire."
  - b. The candidates with the highest number of votes will be elected.
  - c. Ballots that have been marked with votes for a greater number of candidates than seats available to be filled will be declared invalid.
  - d. Each elected candidate must have at least a majority of votes cast. (See *SGNA Bylaws*, Article IX Elections, Section 5, Conducting the Vote, Part b.)
  - e. All ballots along with vote recording sheets shall be delivered to the Secretary for retention with SGNA documents for a period of 60 days after the vote and made available for inspection if requested.
  - f. Results of the election shall be included in the minutes of the meeting.
- 6. Ballot Format:

### SGNA Ballot for the Board of Directors Election [insert date]

Instructions: Please enter the names of each candidate nominated for election to serve on the SGNA Board of Directors. Vote by placing an X next to the names of candidates that you have selected, up to the number of seats available in this election.

	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	8.
	9.
	10.

(See Section 5. Conducting the Vote.)

## **ARTICLE X: CONFLICT OF INTEREST**

[No policy established.]

### **ARTICLE XI: NON-DISCRIMINATION**

[No policy established.]

### **ARTICLE XII: GRIEVANCE PROCESS**

[No policy established.]

## **ARTICLE XIII: INDEMNITY**

[No policy established.]

## **ARTICLE XIV: ONI STANDARDS**

[No policy established.]

### **ARTICLE XV: POLICIES, PRACTICES, AND PROCEDURES** [No policy established.]

# ARTICLE XVI: AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

[No policy established.]

Date Adopted: August 14, 2018 Previous Revisions: 2002, 2014



Mayor Ted Wheeler 1221 SW 4th Ave # 340 Portland. OR 97204

July 29, 2018

Dear Mayor Wheeler,

As a partner in the 2017/18 Clean Start PDX pilot for NE, the Northeast Coalition of Neighborhoods (NECN) has been pleased to see the program recognized by your office. In just over a year the Clean Start PDX program has become a shining example of a public private partnership that effectively and economically addresses a pressing city problem-waste created in NE including by those who are houseless—and which provides meaningful employment and a path from houselessness for the workers. NECN asks that we find a way for this program to continue through next fiscal year.

In the 11-month pilot in Northeast Portland over 55,000 bags of trash and 3,400 needles were removed from the Lloyd and Eliot neighborhoods, two of our member neighborhoods that are most heavily impacted by the growth and spread of those who are houseless. This program is making a substantial difference in the quality of life for housed, houseless and business neighbors alike, particularly in NE where limited resources such as shelters are available.

NECN and our member neighborhoods appreciate your support to make the pilot program a reality. We ask that your office help us secure the needed gap funding of \$90,000 to continue this program next year and help find a sustainable long-term funding solution. NECN recognizes the need to not only continue this program, but expand it to the Sullivan's Gulch neighborhood as soon as possible.

The waste created by our houseless neighbors, who lack resources to appropriately deal with their waste, is not a problem confined to the central city and industrial areas. As a bicycle commuter who rides through Sullivan's Gulch, Irvington, and Lloyd daily I can personally attest that waste from camps is a problem that is spreading out from corridor areas. Now more than ever we need the vital service provided by Clean Start PDX to equitably support residents and businesses in NE as well the central city.

It is both imperative and equitable that this program is continued in NE so that the cleanup of trash and needles does not fall disproportionately to the residents and small businesses of the Lloyd and Eliot neighborhoods. We thank you for considering our request to support vital work of Clean Start PDX in NE which promotes the health, safety and livability of our NE neighbors.

Sincerely

Mariah Dula President of the Board Northeast Coalition of Neighborhoods

www.necoalition.org Alameda • Boise • Concordia •Eliot • Humboldt • Irvington • King • Lloyd • Sabin • Sullivan's Gulch • Vernon • Woodlawn At King Neighborhood Facility, 4815 NE 7<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Portland, OR 97211. 503-823-4575 main, 503-823-3150 fax, info@necoalition.org



Department of Environmental Quality 700 NE Multnomah Street, Suite 600 Portland, OR 97232-4100

August 2, 2018

RE: Recommendations for Strengthening Clean Air Oregon Rules

Dear Department of Environmental Quality,

Northeast Coalition of Neighborhoods is a non-profit that represents 12 densely populated neighborhoods situated in a wedge of northeast Portland that is bordered on three sides by heavy industry, freeways (I-5 and I-84) and freight lines. As such our residents are some of the most impacted in the state by the effects of industry and auto pollution—and we don't even know all of the toxins residents may be exposed due to the historical lack of mandatory reporting and monitoring for all businesses. We are optimistic that this can change and believe SB 1541 was a first step in the right direction.

However, we have several concerns about the proposed rules. Here are our recommendations for addressing areas where we feel the proposed rules are lacking or unclear and need revision. These changes will benefit all Oregonians by eliminating loopholes and raising standards to improve air quality sooner rather than later.

- 1. <u>Eliminate the exemption for small businesses.</u> While large businesses may draw the most attention as sources of air pollution, small businesses can be heinous polluters as well. Size should not be the determining factor for regulation, but actual emissions and to effectively regulate emissions DEQ must measure emissions of businesses large and small. On a neighborhood level, pollution emitted by small businesses, such as auto body shops or glass factories in northeast Portland, pose a significant threat to public health both because of the toxics they emit and their proximity to large residential neighborhoods.
- 2. <u>Air monitoring should be mandatory and conducted without prior notice</u>. By requiring monitoring and conducting it on a surprise basis, DEQ can check that emissions inventories match actual emissions to keep businesses honest and build trust with the public.
- 3. <u>Require the lowest achievable emissions rate for new facilities</u>. Adopting the LAER standard, signals to businesses that public health is a priority in Oregon and will discourage those businesses that pollute the air from establishing facilities in Oregon.
- 4. <u>Establish response time requirements for DEQ in the permitting processes</u>. DEQ must adhere to a timeline to prevent businesses from delaying compliance until benchmarks sunset. Creating a timeline will also help hold polluters accountable for delays in implementing of risk reductions.

#### www.necoalition.org

Alameda • Boise • Concordia •Eliot • Humboldt • Irvington • King • Lloyd • Sabin • Sullivan's Gulch • Vernon • Woodlawn At King Neighborhood Facility, 4815 NE 7th Avenue, Portland, OR 97211. 503-823-4575 main, 503-823-3150 fax, info@necoalition.org

- 5. <u>In assessing emissions, use the most recent and health protective values</u>. It is both appropriate and necessary to use the most health protective values in determining risk action levels, a move which will establish public health as a first priority.
- 6. Lastly, we call on DEQ to <u>publish a searchable emissions inventory on-line</u> in a format that is accessible to the layman, so that the public can understand what they are breathing, just as water bureau and other agencies provide both published public summaries and real-time data for on water quality.

As an organization that advocates for livability for all of our residents we want to remind you that the burden of air pollution is on our most vulnerable community members including children, the elderly and often historically disadvantaged populations. It is imperative that historical inequities are not perpetuated by failing to address the public in a timely manner. Therefore, we also request that DEQ continues to engage the community and responds to the issues raised through the public comment process by publishing a plan to do to address these comments and requests.

On behalf of the 55,000 residents in the NECN neighborhoods, I thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Clean Air Oregon rulemaking and hope that you will take seriously and incorporate our proposed changes.

Sincerely,

Máriah Dula President of the Board Northeast Coalition of Neighborhoods

NORTHEAST COALITION OF NEIGHBORHOODS 4815 NE 7<sup>Th</sup> Ave., Portland, OR 97211 | 503.823.4575 | info@necoalition.org www.necoalition.org